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          1  PLANNING DISPOSITIONS And CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  This will open

          3  up the meeting on the Land Use Disposition

          4  Committee.  We have Council Member Mike Nelson,

          5  Council Member Joel Rivera, Council Member Gentile,

          6  and the presence of Council Member Alan Gerson and

          7  Council Member James.

          8                 We are opening up Item No. L.U. No.

          9  530, Council Member Arroyo.  Anyone to speak on the

         10  item?  Closing the particular item.

         11                 Opening up L.U. Preconsidered C

         12  050461 HAK, Council Member Barron.  Anyone to speak

         13  on the item?  Closing the particular item.

         14                 Opening up Item L.U. 624, Council

         15  Member Arroyo, and Item 626, Council Member Foster.

         16  Anyone to speak on those items? No one to speak,

         17  closing the particular item.

         18                 We recommend an aye vote on the item

         19  presented before the Committee.  Can you call the

         20  roll?

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

         22  Martinez.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ:  Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         25  Member Nelson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          4  Member Rivera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  I vote aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          7  Member Gentile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Aye.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

         10  of 4 in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         11  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         12  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         13                 We now are opening up Item L.U. No.

         14  163, Council Member Provenzano.  We have several

         15  speakers on the item.  I am going to ask my

         16  distinguished colleague from Brooklyn, Council

         17  Member Nelson to share the meeting for the rest of

         18  the hearing. Unfortunately, I have to excuse myself.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  I would

         20  like to call up our first panel, please.  Is Lewis

         21  here?  Ms. Lewis, if you could please come up to the

         22  microphone at this front desk.  And Ms. Dolores G.

         23  Madison, and Ms. Donna Classe, and Ms. Dulce M.

         24  Perrez. And each one of the panelists will have two

         25  minutes to speak, please.  If you need a little bit
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          2  more time, please, do it as quickly as you can at

          3  that moment.  And I suppose, well, whichever one

          4  wants to start off, it is up to the panel  And

          5  please identify yourself, whoever does speak at the

          6  beginning of their statements.

          7                 Is Ms. Lewis going to speak first, if

          8  you want Ma'am.  And please just mention your name

          9  from the beginning, if you speak into the mic.  If

         10  the green light is on, it is working.

         11                 MS. LEWIS:  My name is Luz Lewis.  I

         12  live at Janel Towers, 801 Neill Avenue in the Bronx.

         13    I am a senior citizen, and if the landlord decides

         14  to not go along with rent stabilization, I don't

         15  know what I am going to do as a senior citizen.  And

         16  we have a lot of senior citizens in that building.

         17  And we don't want Article 5, because we don't think

         18  that that is going to be the appropriate thing for

         19  us to be able to live.  Because if don't get rent

         20  stabilization what am I going to do  Where am I

         21  going?  I have no idea, because I am a senior

         22  citizen, I don't have any family left, most of my

         23  family they are all deceased.

         24                 So, I just ask that we get rent

         25  stabilization and not Article 5.  Please try to help
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          2  us, and vote against Article 5.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank you

          4  very much for testifying, Ms. Lewis, thank you.

          5                 MS. CLASSES:  My name is Donna

          6  Classe.  And I have been a tenant at Janel Towers

          7  for 34 years.  I am here today to ask that you vote

          8  against Article 5, and please to vote for rent

          9  stabilization.

         10                 I speak, I believe I speak for many

         11  of the tenants who could not be here today.  We have

         12  a petition from those tenants, over 200, and we are

         13  asking you not to take this vote today lightly.

         14  Janel Towers is an elegant building.  It has been

         15  for 34 years.  We as the tenants have kept it that

         16  way.  It is not run down and dilapidated as some

         17  people would have you think it is. And we believe

         18  that it is only fair that we keep rent stabilization

         19  as our rights.  It is our legal right to have some

         20  say in how we choose to live, and where we choose to

         21  live.

         22                 Article 5 offer tenants no protection

         23  at all, and we ask that you please vote against

         24  Article 5.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

          3  you, Ms. Classe. Is Ms. Madison going to speak next?

          4                 MS. MADISON:  Yes.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Okay.

          6                 MS. MADISON:  Good afternoon.  My

          7  name is Dolores Madison, and I am here, as well, to

          8  ask you to at least give strong consideration to our

          9  requests.  We are against Article 5 for reasons that

         10  it does not afford us the protection that we feel we

         11  need.  We cannot depend on government subsidy at

         12  this time, in as much as the government now is at a

         13  very crucial situation with all of the hurricanes

         14  and the tragedies that we have experienced.  That is

         15  something that when cuts start, when they have to

         16  begin cutting funds, we don't know if that will be

         17  one of them.

         18                 There are many of us who aren't even

         19  eligible for government funding, even if it is to

         20  remain.  Where are we to go? I, personally, have

         21  lived at Janel Towers for 21 years.  I have been a

         22  lifetime resident of the Bronx.  I have been a Civil

         23  Servant.  I retired after 39 years of Civil Service.

         24    I have been in New York for all of my life.  I

         25  have given a lot to New York, and I feel at this
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          2  point when New York is able to give something back

          3  to me, it is not happening.  Instead, I have to

          4  worry.  I have to worry because you are not

          5  affording me the opportunity to be safe where I am

          6  living at.

          7                 At this point, I am considered a

          8  senior citizen, and where am I to go?  Where am I

          9  suppose to begin looking for a place to live?  As I

         10  said, I am retired, I have a decent pension, but if

         11  I have to go into rent increase of 60 percent, I

         12  will no longer have a decent pension, and I will not

         13  be eligible for any kind of subsidy.

         14                 This city right now is really not for

         15  the middle class.  It is either for the very rich or

         16  the very poor, being the climate of real estate and

         17  housing.  We are asking that you give some

         18  consideration to those of us that are still part of

         19  the working class.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         21  you, Ms. Madison, appreciate your testimony.  Ms.

         22  Perrez.

         23                 MS. PERREZ:  Good afternoon.  My name

         24  is Dulce Perrez.  I have been living in the

         25  neighborhood since I was 12 years- old, and that is
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          2  over 25 years.  I have been living in the building

          3  for 15 years, I have my parents, they are senior

          4  citizens living in the building.  I am not only

          5  worried about myself, but I worry about them.

          6                 I am a survivor from the World Trade

          7  Center, and I can tell you at this point, when I saw

          8  that building come down, and God spared my life, I

          9  was like so happy to come home.  But now it is like

         10  the whole building is crumbling down again in front

         11  of my eyes.  I am totally stressed, I wanted to

         12  start a family, I can't do that.  There is so much

         13  out there that is happening with this building, and

         14  with all this Article 5.  We don't sleep at night.

         15  We have meetings after meetings, and people are just

         16  complaining about stress.  It is not only my stress,

         17  it is everybody else's stress.

         18                 Okay, now if you remember, if

         19  everybody was there and they saw 9/11, was that

         20  horrific?  Well I am living the same thing now.  I

         21  lost my job, I almost lost my life, now I am losing

         22  my home.  I don't have anything else to say, but

         23  where am I going to go?  Is somebody going to give

         24  me, I am not even stable yet. Since 9/11, I haven't

         25  been myself, I haven't been able to come down to the
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          2  City.  I came today with this group of people

          3  because they have to hear us.  We are tired of going

          4  through this, of not being able to make it.  I

          5  haven't been able to get back on my own two feet

          6  since 9/11 of 2001.  We are going on to 2005 and now

          7  I am going to lose my home, I am not even ready.  I

          8  cannot sleep at night.  I have got to go to the

          9  doctor's because I am breaking out. There is nothing

         10  else I can say.  I can't stress this issue anymore

         11  than what I have.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         14  you, Ms. Perrez, and I thank the whole panel.  You

         15  can wait around too, while other people will also be

         16  expressing their views.

         17                 Can we put one more chair up for the

         18  next panel, there will be five people testifying?

         19  If Sheila Hirschman would please join us, and Barry

         20  Soltz, Maria Gonzalez, Adele Bender, and William

         21  Gribben, please.

         22                 Whoever would like to start speaking

         23  first.

         24                 MS. HIRSCHMAN:  I am Sheila

         25  Hirschman, good afternoon.  Thank you for giving us
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          2  a chance at this hearing.  I am just devastated.  I

          3  have been living at Janel Towers for 34 years, and I

          4  am now alone.  And my rent will be double, if we get

          5  Article 5.  And I cannot understand why we are, why

          6  HPD approved Article 5 when we are legally entitled

          7  to rent stabilization.  It is unfair, where am I to

          8  go?

          9                 I get a teacher's pension, I was on

         10  the Professional Administrative Staff at Hunter

         11  College.  I love my home, my home is not rundown or

         12  dilapidated.  And the things that R1 Management

         13  proposes to do are just aesthetic.  We cannot have

         14  them and we don't really need them.

         15                 Please help us?  What is the middle-

         16  income person supposed to do, and especially the

         17  senior citizens whom I represent in the building?

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         20  you, Ms. Hirschman.  I guess Adele Bender.

         21                 MS. BENDER:  My name is Adele Bender.

         22    I am the Queens Borough Coordinator for JPAC.  I

         23  cannot tell you how upsetting this thing is.  This

         24  thing is breaking up families, it is breaking up

         25  communities.  That building is a community, they
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          2  know each other, they help each other.

          3                 I come from Queens, I belong to the

          4  Queens League of United Tenants, I belong to Met

          5  Council, I have been at this for a long time.  This

          6  whole City is going right down the tubes.

          7                 You cannot, where are these people

          8  supposed to go, if they are seniors will they go, do

          9  they have to leave town?  If they are working

         10  people, do they have to have two and three jobs and

         11  sacrifice the time with their families?  This thing

         12  is absolutely inhumane.  As I say, it is breaking up

         13  families, breaking up communities, and it is wrong,

         14  and it is very unhealthy for a whole society.  Don't

         15  let this thing go through, you keep the rents

         16  affordable.  This whole town is having a lot of

         17  problems for low- income, moderate- income, middle-

         18  income, don't add fuel to this fire.  And see to it,

         19  please, see to it that any of this Article or

         20  anything that is going to hurt any of these people

         21  in this building does not go through.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         24  you, Ms. Bender. I believe it is, Williams is going

         25  to speak next or Ms. Gonzalez? Ms. Gonzalez, okay.
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          2                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Good morning to Mr.

          3  Chairman, and every Committee person who is here

          4  today.  I am the Tenants' President of the

          5  Association.  I have been a tenant at Janel Towers

          6  for almost 36 years.  I went there as a bride, all

          7  my children were born there.  And I have always been

          8  a participant in our Association and anything that

          9  is going on in the building. My children now that

         10  they are older and some of them are on their own,

         11  still continue to come to Janel Towers because

         12  everyone that is there has been a part of their

         13  life.  We have always been involved with the

         14  situations at the school, anything that goes on in

         15  the neighborhood.  This has been our life.

         16                 That is my home.  I have 216

         17  signatures in this book, which I would like to

         18  present to you from every tenant at the building.

         19  Our conversations this past year has only been what

         20  is going to happen to us.  We have mostly all lived

         21  there and have never been told that this was going

         22  to happen to us.  That those of us that are reaching

         23  senior citizens, those of us that are young families

         24  who are coming here, cannot stay and live in this

         25  building or in New York City.  Tenants, the

                                                            14

          1  PLANNING DISPOSITIONS And CONCESSIONS

          2  landlords have become so greedy that they cannot

          3  understand that even though everything is going up,

          4  our salaries, some of us, don't go up.  That we just

          5  don't pay rent, we have other bills, we have

          6  children, we have medical.  And at this point in

          7  time, even young families that are starting out

          8  cannot find a home to live in, in the City of New

          9  York.  The word affordable is being thrown too

         10  literally.

         11                 My children have children of their

         12  own already, and they are living in a one- bedroom

         13  apartment, their children can't have a room because

         14  the rents are just so outrageous.  And then when

         15  they propose going into an Article 5 to say that a

         16  building is dilapidated, that there is a lot of

         17  things going on in this building that you know, they

         18  need to put so much money into it. No, I don't need

         19  a new kitchen, I don't need a microwave, I don't

         20  need a dishwasher.

         21                 I need to have that I can pay my

         22  bills and be there and stay happy, and not being

         23  told, you know, you have to get out. And Article 5

         24  is not given me or my family or my friends in this

         25  building, or anyone in this City any type of
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          2  protection.

          3                 If you can give us a guarantee, fine,

          4  but you can't. And at this point in time, the answer

          5  is no.  We know what rent stabilization for us would

          6  mean.  And we are accepting of this, and we want you

          7  to vote no to that Article 5.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         10  you, Ms. Gonzalez. Mr. Gribben.

         11                 MR. GRIBBEN:  Yes, may it please the

         12  Council, my name is William Gribben.  I am an

         13  Attorney, my law firm represents the Janel Towers

         14  Tenant Association.

         15                 Janel Towers is currently in Article

         16  2 of the Private Housing Finance Law, commonly known

         17  as the Mitchell- Lama Program.  Janel Towers were

         18  built prior to January 1, 1974, which means that if

         19  the landlord decides to come out of the Mitchell-

         20  Lama Program, that building will go into rent

         21  stabilization.  That is the normal course of events.

         22                 What you have before you is a

         23  proposed plan by management to come out of the

         24  Mitchell- Lama Program, which is their prerogative,

         25  but to go into Article 5 of the Private Housing
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          2  Finance Law.  Now I have handed up some material to

          3  the Council members, and I am sure you would have

          4  done it on your own, but if you read Article 5,

          5  Article 5 concerns the reconstruction, the

          6  rehabilitation of dilapidated, uninhabitable,

          7  unsanitary conditions.

          8                 I would urge every member of this

          9  Committee that before you vote on this, that you go

         10  to 801 Neill Avenue.  Eight Zero One Neill Avenue,

         11  Janel Towers is a beautiful building on a tree- line

         12  block with a lobby attendant, fully tenanted, fully

         13  operational, a minimal number of violations.  This

         14  is not Article 5 housing.  And I think that is a

         15  significant thing for the Council to know.  If it is

         16  not Article 5 housing, why is it being proposed that

         17  the building follow its natural course and go into

         18  rent stabilization, but instead, is being made to

         19  fit into a program to which it does not belong?

         20                 And the answer I think is pretty

         21  clear.  The rents under Article 5 will increase by

         22  100 percent.  Again, I have included management's

         23  own statistics on what will happen to the rent.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Mr.

         25  Gribben, you can continue for a while.
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          2                 MR. GRIBBEN:  Thank you very much.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Sure.

          4                 MR. GRIBBEN:  The rents, in essence,

          5  will double under Article 5.  The rents that have

          6  been approved by HPD are doubling of the rent.  What

          7  HPD has said throughout is that the tenants at Janel

          8  need not worry, they will not be forced to pay those

          9  new rents.  That either through the existing Section

         10  8 Program or through the Federal Enhanced Section 8

         11  program, they will receive a subsidy in order for

         12  them to afford those rents.

         13                 There is, again in my papers, there

         14  was an article in the New York Times about two weeks

         15  ago in which the Section 8 Enhanced Voucher Program

         16  was discussed right there on the table among what

         17  Congress is considering in terms of budgetary

         18  cutbacks. When we met with HPD, myself and the

         19  tenants met with HPD probably about two or three

         20  weeks ago, what we asked for is a guarantee.  We

         21  know what will happen by going into rent

         22  stabilization.  What we wanted to know is, is there

         23  anyway to guarantee that in fact the rents will stay

         24  affordable, and that in fact Section 8 and Enhanced

         25  Section 8 will be there?  And of course there is no
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          2  guarantee.  It is not a program that this Council

          3  controls or the State controls, it is a federal

          4  program.

          5                 Given the uncertainty of continued

          6  funding at those levels, and the certainty of rent

          7  increases under rent stabilization.  Nobody in this

          8  room, no tenant in Janel, is under the impression

          9  that being rent stabilization means anything like a

         10  rent freeze.  They know that there are one or two

         11  year increases, where guidelines brought increases,

         12  they know that if the landlord does work at the

         13  building they can get major capital rent

         14  improvements.  They know that there is even a

         15  possibility that their initial rent can be increased

         16  under the unique or peculiar case that was decided

         17  by the Court of Appeals a few months ago. They know

         18  all of that.  And they know that their rent will go

         19  up. But they opt for joining one million other rent

         20  stabilized tenants, who know that their rent will go

         21  up periodically, rather than be put into a situation

         22  where they are beholding to the federal government

         23  in terms of a continued subsidy.

         24                 Why should people who don't need a

         25  subsidy, be put in a position where they need a
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          2  subsidy?  That is just downright unfair.

          3                 Also under this program there are

          4  things, there are protections taken away from

          5  tenants that they would otherwise have under rent

          6  stabilization, for instance succession rights, the

          7  right to remain in their apartments.  Under the

          8  Section 8 program they can be told to move to other

          9  apartments if their family composition changes.

         10  These are rights that these people should not be

         11  forced to be giving away.

         12                 And I think there is something

         13  somewhat insidious going on here, and that is, that

         14  this is happening in the Bronx, and this is being

         15  sold as don't worry, you will get Section 8. Should

         16  this Committee approve this, it will face a

         17  situation where within walking distance of this City

         18  Hall and Independence Plaza, all the ways out --

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Please

         20  summation, Mr. Gribben.

         21                 MR. GRIBBEN:  Well okay - -

         22  throughout the entire West Side, there will be

         23  situations in which people's incomes will be such

         24  that they will not be entitled to Section 8.  But

         25  this Committee will have already set a precedent
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          2  allowing landlords to go into Article 5.  What that

          3  will mean is that we will see developments

          4  throughout the City go into market rent without

          5  subsidies.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  I thank

          7  you, Sir.  I am glad that they have you as a

          8  spokesperson.  I want to introduce the other members

          9  of the Committee.  First of all, Joel Rivera, Hiram

         10  Monserrate, and James Sanders, and also joining us

         11  is Gale Brewer. Vincent Gentile was introduced with

         12  me, by the Chair.

         13                 Okay, can we just have the last

         14  person testify, and then we will ask the questions,

         15  how is that?  Mr. Soltz.

         16                 MR. SOLTZ:  Hi, I am Barry Soltz.  I

         17  am a tenant at Janel Towers.  The tenants are

         18  extremely angry over HPD's approval of Article 5.

         19  Article 5 offers the tenants no protections, huge

         20  rent increases, and we are not happy with the

         21  Enhanced Voucher Program.  Enhanced Voucher Program

         22  is constantly under attack by the Bush

         23  Administration.  We want guarantees, we are not

         24  happy with this at all.

         25                 We understand that rent stabilization
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          2  is not an ideal system.  But you know what, at least

          3  rent stabilization offers us certain protections.

          4  At least we know where we stand. And you know what,

          5  we are outraged at HPD.  Shame on HPD, shame on

          6  them.  You know, Article 5 is for dilapidated,

          7  rundown, uninhabitable buildings.  Our building is

          8  in excellent condition, Mitchell- Lama.  Basically,

          9  our landlord went to HPD proposed $5 million in

         10  renovations and they gave him the green light.  How

         11  dared they do that?  I don't need a new kitchen

         12  cabinets.  My kitchen cabinet is fine.  I don't need

         13  a dishwasher, I have my own two hands, I can wash

         14  dishes pretty well with them.  Okay?

         15                 And what I would like to know is, why

         16  is HPD approving huge rent increases for the

         17  landlord that are being paid for by federal tax

         18  dollars, why are they approving large tax incentives

         19  for the same landlord, and money out of tenants'

         20  pockets to put extra money in landlords' pockets?  I

         21  don't understand this. Shame on HPD.

         22                 Basically, this is really imperative

         23  that you vote against this plan, because there are

         24  going to be other Mitchell Lama's buying out, and

         25  this will affect them as well.  Let's not set a

                                                            22

          1  PLANNING DISPOSITIONS And CONCESSIONS

          2  precedent with this case.  Please, let's nip this in

          3  the butt.  We are unanimously opposed to this plan.

          4  Please, consider us?

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

          6  you, Mr. Soltz. Council Member Monserrate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Yes,

          8  first of all, Mr. Chair, I think there were some

          9  votes earlier in the Committee, I would like to vote

         10  on those, I think there were two items, I wanted to

         11  vote on both of them in the affirmative.  Do you

         12  want to take the other vote, and then I will make my

         13  remarks?  Go ahead.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         15  Member Sanders.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  I voter for

         17  both in the affirmative.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

         19  of 6 in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         20  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         21  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Let me

         23  just say that first and foremost I want to salute

         24  the Tenants' Association of the Janel Towers for

         25  their advocacy and their energy.  And I know that
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          2  they have made calls, and have been very active in

          3  ensuring that members of this Committee know exactly

          4  what their concerns are, and I salute you.  And I

          5  tend to agree with you that clearly we don't think

          6  the ownership of this building would be doing this

          7  for the benefit of the tenants.  Much more for their

          8  own benefits, and I look forward to working with

          9  this Committee so that we can come up with an ends

         10  that is most favorable to you that have been living

         11  there and have been part of that community for so

         12  many years.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  I think I

         15  would like to mention that we will recess, and the

         16  vote will not be today, it will be November 29th at

         17  9:30 a.m.

         18                 Council Member Joel Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Thank you

         20  very much, Mr. Chairman.  First I want to say thank

         21  you to the tenants and to the Attorney for joining

         22  us here today.  I am glad that we were able to

         23  convene this meeting and have an opportunity to hear

         24  your concerns down here in City Hall.  And for my

         25  colleagues to hear, you know, what is going on in
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          2  the Bronx within 801 Neill Avenue.

          3                 You know I have listened to both

          4  sides.  I have had an opportunity to meet, you know,

          5  obviously, with the Assemblywoman and meet with a

          6  couple of the tenants yesterday, and as well with

          7  HPD, and try to figure out what, in essence, is

          8  going on here.

          9                 My question is, has there been

         10  adequate information presented to the tenants in

         11  reference to the program that is being put forward

         12  by the Article 5, or is there lack of information?

         13                 MS. GONZALEZ:  There is a pre- lack

         14  of information, and on the understanding of the

         15  information that has been coming forward from our

         16  landlord, we have repeatedly told them there has

         17  been a lot of confusion in telling us about the

         18  program.  And even the tenants that have researched

         19  the Section 8 and Enhanced Voucher, they are not

         20  happy with it.  They simply look at it at this

         21  point, it doesn't serve any protection for us.

         22                 Who is to say that if one year they

         23  have that voucher, the following year they lose that

         24  voucher, they lose their jobs, they will be evicted.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Now I also
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          2  know that the building is in pretty good condition.

          3  The elevators are fine, the boiler is fine, the

          4  basic things are fine within the building.

          5                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  And I

          7  remember one of the ladies in the previous panel

          8  said that she doesn't need a new dishwasher or

          9  microwave.

         10                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Okay, and I

         12  can actually say the same thing because I live in a

         13  very old building, have cabinets that have been

         14  there for 40 years, they are fine.  I have no

         15  dishwasher, you know, I am doing okay, I wash the

         16  dishes myself, and I am pretty sure people don't

         17  mind doing that.

         18                 So I can agree with that statement

         19  that, you know, the premise for in going into this

         20  $4 million renovations is not needed.  I can

         21  understand if the building was dilapidated, falling

         22  apart, and in disrepair or lead paint, and asbestos,

         23  and things that would be dire health conditions, but

         24  obviously, that is not the case here.  I mean you

         25  are not concerned with getting a brand new swimming
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          2  pool, or you know, getting all that stuff.

          3                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Our building does have

          4  a swimming pool.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Yes.  It is

          6  fine the way it is.

          7                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Just this morning we

          8  received a memo telling us a new filter was put in.

          9  At a time when we are worried about rents, we are

         10  worrying about a new filter?  Okay.  Our apartments,

         11  a lot of tenants have invested a lot of their own

         12  money in upgrading how they live.  Okay.

         13                 I have a microwave.  For years I had

         14  a washing machine, I was told to get rid of it.  Now

         15  they are going to put a dishwasher in there.  And

         16  this is against their own lease, to tell me, you

         17  know, you are going to give me a dishwasher, I have

         18  been washing dishes all my life.  Okay.  That

         19  doesn't concern me, new cabinets don't.  How to keep

         20  a roof over my head does.  My husband and I are now

         21  going, we are 60 and 62, I have to worry, where am I

         22  going to go that I can pay for my roof over my head?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Okay.  Now my

         24  questions to the attorney.  In reference to the

         25  regulatory agreement, I have heard concerns about,
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          2  you know, escape clauses for the landlord if he

          3  decides he wants to prepaid the mortgage, he would

          4  actually be able to opt- out from the regulations of

          5  the regulatory agreement. Is that so, in your

          6  opinion?

          7                 MR. GRIBBEN:  Well the first question

          8  you posed I think had to do with the flow of

          9  information.  And to answer that question first,

         10  there wasn't any.  We were called to a meeting of

         11  HPD about two weeks ago, we were under the

         12  assumption that we were coming to discuss things.

         13  Actually, we came to the meeting we were told, we

         14  were told that they had already decided.

         15                 And at that meeting, prior to that

         16  meeting they have never given the tenants anything.

         17  It was at that meeting that we made a request for

         18  the regulatory agreement, which we recently

         19  received.  I don't see anything in that regulatory

         20  agreement that I can read to be an absolute

         21  prohibition on the landlord buying out of Article 5.

         22    I just don't see it.

         23                 We are kind of in new territory.  I

         24  can see an argument being made by the landlord that

         25  they should be entitled to come out of five, just as
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          2  they were entitled to come out of two.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  I apologize,

          4  just, you know, I just wanted to find out, have we

          5  heard from, I know there is one other building in

          6  the City that has gone to this Article 5 process,

          7  have we heard concerns from them, or no?

          8                 MR. GRIBBEN:  We were told that there

          9  was a building in Queens that went from 2 to 5.  We

         10  didn't know about it actually until, we couldn't

         11  find anything on any of the databases that we had

         12  checked.  And it was actually at the meeting that we

         13  had with HPD that we were told about this other

         14  building.  But we have no information, we weren't

         15  given any further information other than it was

         16  approved.  We don't know what condition the building

         17  was in, what attitude the tenants had, what went on,

         18  I mean, literally nothing.  I wish we knew more, but

         19  we don't.

         20                      COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  I know,

         21  me too.  I mean my goal would be to have as

         22  transparent process as possible, you know, have all

         23  the cards on the table.  And then hopefully we can

         24  have, you know, I know meetings after meetings after

         25  meetings get tiresome, but I think that it is
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          2  important, because we need to make sure that

          3  everyone fully understands the scope and the

          4  ramifications, and you know whether it is a positive

          5  or a negative. So I hope that we can convene, again,

          6  with the tenants in your house, you know, with

          7  myself and any members who want to join us within

          8  the community or outside to discuss, you know, the

          9  future of Janel Towers.

         10                 Because you are right, I mean, you

         11  know with the crisis taking down, you know, taking

         12  place down south with so many expenses going up the

         13  roof.  And times are getting tough, and you know,

         14  the middle class is getting pushed out.  And I think

         15  that is a major, major concern that we have, and we

         16  have to be weary of that.  So I am glad that we are

         17  not having a vote today, that we have some time for

         18  this to sink in for people, and to hopefully get,

         19  you know, up- to- date on what is exactly taking

         20  place.

         21                 And I want to commend you for coming

         22  out here, down here to City Hall, and for all your

         23  leadership within the past couple of months on this

         24  issue.  I know I am waiting for testimony from the

         25  Assemblywoman, so we can read it into the record.
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          2  And once we get that, we will read that into the

          3  record as well.

          4                 I just want to say, thank you for

          5  your participation.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

          7  you, Council Member Rivera.  I think you have

          8  expressed a lot of people's concerns and feelings on

          9  this issue.

         10                 Council Member Brewer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         12  very much.  I am not on this Committee, but needless

         13  to say we have on the West Side, or have I would say

         14  24 separate Mitchell- Lama developments in my

         15  district.  And I have spent maybe a thousand

         16  meetings on the issues of Section 8 Enhanced

         17  Vouchers, so I feel like I am an expert.  And what I

         18  would say, is first of all, thank you, because this

         19  is the first Article 2 to Article 5, and whatever

         20  goes on in your building is going to go on

         21  elsewhere.  So I appreciate your participation.  It

         22  helps us think through what the issues are for other

         23  buildings.

         24                 What I would sort of add to the

         25  discussion is, you know there are two sides to this
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          2  issue.  As policy makers, we want to make sure that

          3  there is affordable housing into the future, as you

          4  do.  As individuals, and that boars for a discussion

          5  further with HPD.  However, from my experience with

          6  Section 8 Enhanced Vouchers, and when I say a

          7  thousand meetings, Serg and I have probably been on

          8  the West Side to a thousand meetings.  And what is

          9  of tremendous concern to me is the fact that there

         10  are some personal challenges, not just the

         11  longevity.  I actually believe that Section 8

         12  Enhanced Vouchers will never go away.  You will see

         13  all the articles in the paper, but it just like, you

         14  know, Medicaid is actually a hospital program.

         15  Section 8 Voucher Enhanced is actually a landlord

         16  program, it is not a tenant program.

         17                 So in the end it is not going

         18  anywhere.  So I wouldn't worry so much about the

         19  Washington aspect.  I do worry about the personal A-

         20  L aspect.  Because it is very disconcerting to have

         21  to move from one apartment to another.  You never

         22  know if your grandchildren are going to return, and

         23  it is very challenging to every year to have to come

         24  up with not just the usual recertification, but they

         25  seem to want more information.  I don't know how
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          2  much you could possibly provide.

          3                 And I know that in one building where

          4  we have Section 8 Enhanced and the Landlord

          5  Assistance Program, known as the LAP Program, known

          6  as the, you know, made- up Police Machetti Granadeer

          7  (phonetic) Program, into the record, she will kill

          8  me. But the fact of the matter is that it is a

          9  challenge to keep those individuals who are in the

         10  Section 8, you know, one year grace period until you

         11  have to move.  But it is very disconcerting.

         12                 And I also think what happens to

         13  those who are not eligible.  So the question is

         14  maybe sitting down with the wonderful elected

         15  officials from the Bronx and HPD, I think it is time

         16  to say to everybody involved, let's think outside

         17  the box here.  Yes, we want a long- term affordable

         18  housing, but we want succession rights, we want some

         19  amalgam of stabilization, and we want our cake and

         20  eat too, we want to have some infusion of funding,

         21  if that is going to provide long- term affordable

         22  housing.

         23                 So I am just saying is we are all

         24  behind you to try to come with something that works

         25  for your needs, provides affordable housing.
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          2  Because whatever goes on in this building, it is

          3  going to go on in other Mitchell- Lamas.

          4                 If HPD could support a LAP Program,

          5  right, which is now sort of state- of- the- art,

          6  they can also figure out a way with you to come up

          7  with something that is innovative for your building

          8  that sets precedent for the future.

          9                 So we, that is what I wanted to say

         10  is, there are a lot of challenges not longevity with

         11  Section 8 Enhanced Vouchers, but with the way in

         12  which they have to be administered by the federal

         13  government, and the sacrifices that you have to

         14  make.  And there is a personal, into the future, I

         15  think a bit of an invasion to people's lives that is

         16  not necessary, but it is part of the program.  So

         17  let's see if we can think of something outside the

         18  box for all of us and the many buildings that are in

         19  the pipeline, at least in my district.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank

         22  you, Council Member Brewer.  Anybody else in the

         23  panel would like to speak? Hearing no others to

         24  testify today, this meeting is recessed.  The

         25  hearing is closed and recessed.  We are going to be

                                                            34

          1  PLANNING DISPOSITIONS And CONCESSIONS

          2  meeting again, the 29th, 9:30 a.m. Not in this

          3  building though, 250 Broadway, on the 16th Floor.

          4                 Okay, having said that, this hearing

          5  is closed. Thank you all very much for testifying.

          6                 (Hearing recessed at 1:35 p.m.)
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